THE FAMILY OF CONCKELYNE, CONKLIN AND
CONKLING IN AMERICA

By Coxxnrn Many, Esq., of New York, N. Y.

Among the marriage licenses of Nottingham, Englaud, ave
these three items;

493 Treh, 1630/31, Annanias Conckelyne of Kings Swinford,
County Stafford glasse maker and Mary Lander, parish St Peter’s
Nottingham spinster: at St. Peter’s (Bond by John Coneklyne
of Nuthall glassmaker).”’

12 April 1637, Jacob Coneklyne of Awlsworth Parish Nuthall,
glasemaker and Elizabeth Hickton of Watnall parish Greasely
spinster at St Nicholas.”’

95 June 1642, Thomas Cooke of Ilkeston, County Derby, pistor,
bachellar and Elizabeth Concklyn of Nuthall, widow.”’

The vegister of St Peter’s Parish, Nottingham, contains these
two marriage records:

“John Concklin and Elizabeth Allseabrook 24 Jan. 1624/25.°°
“‘ Ananias Concklyne and Mary Launder 23 Feb, 1630/31."

Except for a few entries in the Kingswinford register relating
to children from the above marriages, nothing more has heen
found bearing on the Conklins in England. It must be admitted,
however, that no exhaustive search has ever been made. I am
convinced that there are no records available in Ameriea that
will complete the Conklin story. It will be told more fully when
various English parish records are again available. The records
that should be searched are widely scattered but they have one
eonimon genealogical denominator—they are of churches in which
the glassmakers from Continental Europe worshiped. Few of
the records are in print; perhaps war has destroyed many of
them,

After considerable reading bearing on the story of the Italian,
Lorraine and Norman glassmakers who came in a steady stream
to England for several years following 1560, I venture a few
opinions, which at best are merve guesses. My guess isx that
Conckelyne or Concklyne is an English corruption of a Conti-
nental name; that Ananias and John Conekelyne were of the
second generation in England; that their forebears eame from
Italy, Lorraine or Normandy, perhaps by way of Antwerp.

The ending ‘elyne’ or ‘lyne’ does not establish the name as
Norman, Flemish or Seotch, as has been said. If, for instance,
the great Venetian glassmaker Verzelini, eould guickly become
Verselyne in English parish records, there is no reason why a
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lorentine-Norman family such as Coneini shonld not become
Coneelyne, Conckelyne or Concklyne. Or if the French ‘‘Gan-
delin” (Gand plus the French double diminutive suffix el-in)
could be corrupted rapidly to English “Candlin,”” who cares to
argue that the original first consonant of Conklin was not G?

At least one interesting example of John Concklyne’s hand-
writing is in existence, his application, written when an old man,
for his granddaughter Rebecca Brush’s marvriage license, 1t is
courteously worded in a style completely Enelish and written in
characters equally English. It ig difficult to believe that an
ordinary man who had not obtained his education in England
could have written it. The fact that Ananias and John Conek-
Iyne evidently came to Salem, Massachusetis Bay, under eontraet
to make glass indicates that they were skilled glassmakers. That
they belonged to the burgher elass seems obvious from two impor-
tant soeial facts, The Algeabrooks and Launders of Nottingham
were leading burgher familieg of Nottingham. When the day
came for the children of Ananias and John Conklin to marry,
they did well. The two oldest sons of John Coneklyne married
in Southold the town’s richest widow and a daughter of the
town's richest man, respectively. In East Hampton, Jeremiah
Concklyne, oldest son of Ananias, marvied Marvy, daughter of
Lion Gardiuer, the most important man of Bastern Long Island.
Benjamin, the second son, took for his wife Hannah, danghter
of Justice Johu Mulford, head of a powerful clan. It is incon-
ceivable that the Coneklynes of the second generation could have
eonsistently allied themselves with the Hortons, Youngs, Gardi-
ners ad Malfords unless they were of the same strata.

Jobm and Apanias Conckelyne are now accepted as brothers.
There is little room for doubt of the relationship, though I know
of no absolute proof. Should Jacoh Conckelyne be added?
Perhaps. We know shat John Conckelyne named a son Jacob
althongh be never named one Ananias—nor, for that matter, did
Ananias name one John,

The parentage of John Concklin of Westchester County, New
York, who was of Flushing, Long Island, in 1660, remains a
mystery.  There are several thenries coneerning it that will be
diseussed in the artiele about Lim, but, at this writing, I do not
know his parventage o where he came from.

Durine the first two hundred vears in this country, the name
{tonekelyne or Cinkelyne was spelled in many different ways.
Today, it 1s fairly well standardized as Conklin, with the excep-
tiom of eertain of the Fast Hampton lines that keep a final ‘g,’
andd o family here ar there that makes use of the form Concklin.
Soon after 1700, the form Conkling became standard in all lines
dessended Trom Ananias Coneklyne,  In Southold, the final ‘g’
was Trequently nsed for a hundred years, also the forms
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Concklin, Conklin and Conkline. In Huntington, the name was
Conklin but the forms Conklyn, Conecklin, Conkline, Conkling
and other variations appear. In Westehester, Concklin was
almost as standard as was Conkling in Tast Hampton.

In Rooney’s Gencalogical History of Irish Families, two coats
of Conklin arms ave reproduced and it is stated that the family
was of the Milesian group and had large holdings near Limerick.

- Diligent seareh by a highly competent genealogist skilled in

Irish research failed to uncover data to support Rooney’s state-
ments. We know that there have been Conklins in Ireland for
many years—several families came from there to America in
the early 1840s. Whether they were in Ireland before or after
Ananias and John Conecklyne came to America, I do not know.

Ananias Concklyne was the first of the name to reach America.
The town of Salem, Massachusetts Bay, on 25:4: 1638, ordered
that Ananias Coneklin® and William Oshorn “‘shall have an
acre a peeee for & home lot,”’ also, *“ Ananias Conelklin shall have
that ten acres of land which was Killams lot, he having it
exchanged for another on Cap Ann side.”

Salem on 27:11: 1638 graunted to Obediah Holmes one acre for
a house near the glass house and 10 aeres more to be laid out.
By 17 Apr. 1639, Lawrence Southwick had been granted haif
an acre and on 11 Dec, 1639, the town granfed ‘‘to the glassmen
severall aeres of ground adjoining to their houses, viz: one acre
more to Ananias Conecline: and two acres a peece to the ofher
twoe viz Lawrence Southick and Obediah Holmes each of them
2 acres to be added to their former house lotts.”’

It is unlikely that John Concklyne aeccompanied Ananias to
Salem, for he first appears on 14 Sept. 1640 when the record
states: ““John Coneline receaved an inhabitant of Salem.”
Also, “Granted to John Concline five acres of ground neere the
glasse house. Granted half an acre more of land for the said
Jobn Coneline neer the (Glags howse.”’

The records of glass making in Salem lead to the conclusion

"that Holmes, Southwick, Ananias Coneklyne and, perhaps,

other ‘‘undertakers’’ formed a company in 1638 and later were
joined by John Concklyne, Evidently the Concklynes were the
master- éraftsmen while the others advaneed the capital. Evi-
dently, oo, Holmes, Southwick and the other eapital soon lost

- interest in the venture, which did not thrive, and the Concklynes

assumed the entire burden.

The General Court in Boston on 10 Dec. 1641 voted that *‘if
the towne of Salem lend the Glassemen 30 pounds, they shall bee
allowed it againe out of their nest rate; and the glasse men

* There is much daia on the Concklynes in "The First Glass Factory—Where?” by

James Kimball, Historical Collections Ersex Institute, Vol. XVI, Jan. 1879, Also i
the History of Solem (1926) by Sidpey Perley, Vol. IL ? .
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to repay it againe if the worke succeed, when they are able.’’
This subsidy is proof of the importance in which the colony held
the venture,

The town of Salem on 27 Feb, 1642/43 voted ¢‘its promise by
the towne that the 8 pounds that hath been lent by the Court
by the request of the fowne to Ananias Concklyne and other
poore people shall be repayed the Court, at the mext Indian
Corne Harvvest.”” Matters went from bad to worse for the glass-
men, however, as is shown by their petition of 1 Oet. 1645 to the
Governor and Deputies:

““A Humble petition of John and Ananias Conkeloyne . . . . .
sheweth that your Petitioners have been imployed Divers yeares
about the glasse worke, and the undertakers now this three yeares
neglected the same, so that your petitioners are not able to
subsist and shal be necessitated either wholely to leave it of (off),
or to remove elsewhere, for better Accomodations of themselves:
wherefore theere humble request first is unto this Honoured
Court, that they might be freed from theire ingagment unto the
former undertakers and left free to joyne with such as will earry
on the work effectually, except the former undertakers forthwith
doe the same, that So the Worke which they Conceive to be a
publie good use for the country may not fall to the ground.”

No further connection of the Concklynes with the glassworks
is found and it seems probable that they turned to other flelds
of activity. DBoth were of Salem on 30 May 1649 when, along
with Thomas Seudder, each received four acres of meadow land.
That John Concklyne visited the towns along Liong Island Sound
in the fall and winter of 1649/50 is indicated by a lefter in the
Winthrop Papers (Mass. Hist. Collection). Writing from Salem,
29: 2. 1650, Emanuel Downing sent a letter to his cousin John
Winthrop Jr., at Pequoite (New London) Conn., which begins:
“Sir: T thank you for the letter by John Conlklin the bearer
thereof who can informe you of our condition here. We have
had a mile winter until the begynning of the 11th month,”’ ete.
et

Probably Concklyne had visited various Sound towns with a
view to resettling and had returned to Salem during the winter
carrying a letter from Winthrop to Downing. Presumably, late
April 1650 was the time when the Concklynes, Scudders and
several other Salem families removed to Southold. An almost
complete lack of Southold records before 1652 prevents setting
any positive date of arrival,

John Coneklyne’s marriage took place six years before that
of Ananias. His name appears before that of Ananias on their
petition to the Court, 1 Oet. 1645. Presumably, he was the
older man. Ananias, however, evidently reached Salem before
John, For that veason his family will be taken up first.
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THE LINE OF ANANIAS CONCKLYNE

1. Ananias! ConerLYNE was born probably about 1605, On
a3 Febh, 1630/31, he married Mary Launder at St. Peter’s in
Nottingham. On 11 Dee. 1631, their daughter Mary was bap-
tized at Kingswinford. No other record coneerning  Ananias
Coneldyne in England has been found except those already men-
tioned. We know that he was in Salem not later than June
1638, Preswmably, he became a member of the Salem ehureh
that year. When Mary (Launder) Coneklyne died is not known,
hut the presence of the name of Susan Coneklyne on the earlicst
churel list (predating 1639) is reasonable assurance that he had
4 speond wite while in Salem.  Susan Coneklyne is marked i
yissed”’ and it seems likely that she aceompanied Auanias to
Southold.

Southold town records in Dee. 1652 in deseriptions ot six
parcels of land owned by various men mention Ananias Conek-
lyne’s holdings ax abutting. No complete deseription ot his
Tands is in Southold records. He still held Southold lands in
Feh. 1654, though he had removed to East Hampton by & Jdaly
1653, for on the first date Southold lists his holdings as *‘the
meadow at Norweste two ackers and a halfe and sixteene poole
{poles) more or less bounded by Thomas Osborne amd Witlinm
Hedges.”  On the smmne date, he received a meadow at Oceo-
banock bounded by lands of the same men. When Thomnus
Seudder sold his Southold lands about “‘ye tenth month 1656,
they were bounded by lands formerly in possession of Ananias
Concklyne but then in that of George Miller. Miller, probably,
was already married to Coneklyne'’s daughter. Miller soldd his
holding, which he deseribed as formerly belonging to Ananins
Concklyne, in Feb. 1656/57, and removed to Bast Hampton.

On 3 Apr. 1635, the town of East Hampton ordered that
Ananias Coneklyne get an aere in the Eastern Plain ‘i enn-
sideration of part of his addition yt he wants in his home ot
He got another aere on the Great Plane between the Lneds of
Richard and John Stratton, on 24 May 1655, The town, in July
1655, ordered that Mr. Lion Gardner, Thomas Chatfield, Auvanias
Conklin and William Hedges “‘shall have the medow att she
North side of Heok Pond and at the end of it to the swamp they
leaving a sufficient way through it whear it shall be most con-
venient for the town. The last land entry in his favor b
Fast Hampton, dated 1 Apr. 1656, grants him six aeres in the
Eastern Plain adjoining Benjamin Price, in eonsideration for
which he gave up six acres of woodlot near the Little Plain.

Ananias Concklyne was eleeted fence viewer in 1653, 1655 and
on T' Apr. 1657. He was an assistant (selectman) in 1654 and
a chimney viewer in 1656, along with Lion Gardiner. He died
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at Fast Hampton between T Apr. 1657 and 5 Oct, 1657 when a
most eomplete inventory of his estate was taken. Probably, he
was little past fifty when he died. Because the settlement of
his estate is most fully reported in the printed records of the
town of Southold, the lengthy details are not repeated here,
The settlement, however, clearly indicates that after he came
to Fast Hampton he had a third wife, Mrs. Dorothy Rose, the
widow of Robert Rose, who was the mother of his youngést ¢hild,
Ilester.*

Children of Ananias!' Coneklyne and Mary Launder:

-4 20 4 Many®t ““‘Mary daughter of Annyas Kouklyn and Mary his
wife baptized 11 Dee. 1631.°" TKingswinford Parish Register.
4 8. il JerEauan®, b, ca, 1633, gs East Hampton.
4, i, Coryenivs®, b, say 1685736, remained at Salem, Mags, George
Miller as admr. of est. of Ananias Concklyne in Jan. 1657 /58
stipulated he would pay Cornelius his legaey in Feb. 1658 /59
“fap my now dwelling house’ at East Hampton—elearly
notice to Cornelius to ‘‘eome and get it."’ Cornelius m.
Mary and 4. childless at Salem, 21 Mar, 1668, His
wid. m. (2) as his sceond wife, Robert Starr of Salem.
Before their marriage, 30 Dee. 1669, Starr deeded land to
“Mary Coneklin my espoused wife.’’ He, b. abt, 1626, m.
first, 24 Nov. 1650, Susanna Hollingworth., She d. 17 May
1665 leaving five eh. By Mary Concklyne, Starr had three
daus.: 1. Mary, b, 9 Oect. 1070/71; ii. Hannab, b. 22 June
1674; iii. Surab, b, 22 June 1673, Robert Starr was killed
by the Indians in the winter of 1677/78. Inv. 23 June 1679,
over 154 pounds.  Adm, to wid, Mary who mentions her four
ch, “very young.'' Papers show that Starr’s first wife was
a dan, of Capt. Richard Hollingsworth and nmames 3 of ¢l
as Robert, Richard and Susanna. Mary (Concklyne) Starr m.
#rd, 8 Bept. 1680, William Nick of Marblehead, Mass.
- 5. iv. Brwyaamw®, b, say 1637 /38,
6. v. Lewis?, bap. 30 Apr. 1643, Salem, 4. y. e may have been a
son of o seeond wife, Susan .

Chibl of Ananias! Coneklyne and Dorothy Rose:

7. vi. Hester®, b, en. 1654, m, Capr. SaMven Munrorp, 4. 24 Nov.
1717 ae, 63, For duta about her, ses Vol XI, p. 139, The
dwmeriean Gienealogist,

9 Many® Covesvyse {dearios’) was baptized at Kings-

winford, County Stafford, Eng, 11 Dee. 1631, 1t is logical to

sne that she was the daughter of Ananias Concklyne who

CoVel X1, page 130, erticds emtitle@d “Two Daughters

f Ansnigs Coneklyne.” the
o Iingswinford register at the request of Mis,

: e verifiedd the fuet that Ananias
stor, Mre, Haliman most kindly has

Fhwe Diaughters o
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warvied George Miller abont 1653 while her father was still
living in Southold. In this assumption, we may be as wrong
as were earlier writers who assumed that Hester Conckiyne was
Miller’s wife. Although there ave several references to Miller’s
wife and widow in East Hampton records, none supplies her
given name.

When Ananias Coneklyne removed to Bast Hampton, Miller
took over his home in Southold. He was in Bast Hampton by
19 Feh. 1656,/57 when, being late of Southold, he sold his South-
old holdings to John Tuthill. On 29 Jan. 1657/58, he gave hond
as administrator of the estate of his father-in-law, Ananias
Concklyne. In Mar, 1657/58, the town of East Iampton voted
him an addition to his home lot next to Jeremiah Mecham. His
name appears many times in the town and land records. He
seems to have specialized in buying and selling stock, partieunlarly
horses. An undated allotment states: ‘‘ Allotment of George
Miller 13 acres which was Robert Rose and afterward in posses-
sion of Ananias Concklyne and so derived by George Miller son
in law of said Ananias.”” He had purchased land of Thomas
Rose, eldest son of Robert, on 19 Dec. 1665.

He evidently got a bit eareless about his horses, for on 4 Dec.
1668 a coroner’s jury found ‘‘the verdict according to the testi-
mony they have is that George Millers provoking of the horse
caused him to strike him which ocasioned his death.”’

Evidently, his widow did not remarry, at least for severul
vears, for there are many references to the widow Miller in the
town records. An undated record of the lands of Benjamin
Coneklyne, her brother, includes this item: ‘A sceond home lot
of six acres being now his home lot did belong unto William
Mulford formerly and being by him made over unto the widow
Myller, wife of George Miller deceased . . ... .. and whivh
home lot was freely given and granted by the widow Myller
unto Benjamin Conkling her brother but sinee this gift was as
aforesaid the aforesaid Benjamin for some considerations mov.
ing him thereto have promised the widow his sister, that he will
hereafter give unto one or other of her somg three acres of Land
elsawhere.””  George Miller may have been a brother or other
relative of three other Bast Hampton Millers of his peneration:
Andrew, Williamm and John, Children of George Miller and
Mary Coneklyne *

i. Jomw, b, 1654, d. 4 Dee, 1738 ae¢, 84 vre, 8 mos,  About 1673
John Miller who had appeared regularly in East Hampton res
beeame *“Sr.”’  Two John Millers appear on the East Hampton
tax lists of 1675 and 1683. On 25 Qet. 1701, Jobn Miller as
eldest son of George Miller, devoused, gave a eonfirming deed 1o
property sold that day by Cornelius Miller to John Conkling.

* Probably there were also daughters,
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il. JEREMIAH, b, ea, 1656, d. 2 Jan, 1723/24, ae. 67 yra. An undated
land entry in East Hampton reads: ‘. .., ... doth belong to
the allotment of George Miller deceagsed who was father of afor-
said Jeremyah Miller.”’ He m. Mary, dau. of John MULFORD
whose will dated 4 Dec. 1683, calls her ‘‘daughter Mary wife
of Jeremy Miller.’” After 1696, he is called Lieut, Miller, THis
wid, d. 9 Oct. 1748 ae. 95, Her will names sons Fleazer, Josiah
and Jeremiah, Eleazer, d. 1788 ae. 91; Josiah, d. 1770 ae, 81
and Jeremiah, d. 1756 ae, 66.

iil. GEORGE, b. say 1658, d. 30 Oet, 1712,
iv. CornerIvs, b. say 1660. Proved a son by deed of 25 Oet. 1701

3. Jeremian® CoNceryNE (A4 nanias') was born ea. 1633, prob-
ably in Kingswinford, County Stafford or in Nottinghamshire.
His ancient brownstone gravestone in Fast Hampton, 1. L., reads,
*‘Here Liveth the Body of Mr. Jeremiah Conkling who dyed Mar.
ve 14th 1711/12 in the 80th Year of His Age.”’ During the
later years of their lives, the Bast Hampton Ceoncklynes of the
second generation began to nse the form Conkling which has been
standard spelling of the name in Ananias’ branches ever since.
Fast Hampton Chureh records state that Jeremiah Conklin Senr.
aged about 78 years died about nine in the evening of 14 Mar.
1712, Jeremiah Concklyne first appears in Hast Hampton
records, 16 Nov. 1655, when he testified that he had heen at
Monchoneck (Gardiner’s Island) the past winter, coming away
ahout 17 Mareh,  Also, that about three weeks before he heard
Anthony Waters say that “‘Mark Meggs or others might strike
Mr, [Liou] (Gardener as well as another if he stood to help the
Dutehmen.”’

By 1658, he married Mary Gardiner, born 30 Aug. 1638, at
Saybrook, Conn., daughter of Lion (ardiner, First Lord of the
Manor of Gardiner’s Island. This marriage automatically
placed him among the important men of the town, a position he
solidified by natural ability. From then on until his death, his
name appears frequently in the records as a purchaser or seller
of lands, officer or committeeman, witness, ete.

The will of Mary, widow of Lion Gardiner, dated 19 Apr.
1664, probated 6 June 1663, gives to her danghter Mary Conkling
“my whole aceomodations at East Hampton,” and mentions
Jeremiah Conckling as her son-in-law, On 7 Mar. 1694, John
Gardiner of the Isle of Wight (Gardiner’s Island) confirmed
to “my Aunt Mary Conckling wife of Jeremiah Coneklin quiet
possession of all that alotment which did formerly belong to
my honoured grandfather Lion Gardiner: lying and being in
Bast Hampton,” .

Jeremiah Conkling was named ameng the seven patentees in
the Duke of York's Patent to the Proprietors of East Hampton,
13 Mar. 1666, He also was one of the twelve trustees in Gov.
Dongan’s Patent of & Dee. 1686, The town tax list of 1675
assessed him on 193 pounds 10 shillings. In 1683, he stood
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elghth on a list of 71 with estimated wealth of 247 pounds.
The Indians on 18 Dee. 1669 renewed a whaling agreement for-
merly made with Lion Gardiner and the Rev. Thomas James,
this time with Mr. James and “‘Jeremyah Counckling now stand-
ing up in ye rvome of lion Gardiner.”” When the town pro-
prietors countracted with the Indians on 1 Dee. 1670 for the
important Montauk Purehase,® Jeremiah Conekling was one of
four bondsmen for payment by the town,

Justice John Mulford, Jeremiah Conckling and Rev. Thomas
James, on 30 May 1672, ohtained a grant of large acreage ar
Meantacut which caused wide diseontent among other pro-
prietors. Eveutually, they gave up the land for land at Aca-
honack, When, on 13 June 1674, the town voted to join with
Southampton and Southold to petition the King to allow them
to continue under the Government of Conneeticut and be *prive-
leged with the priveleges of their charter,”” Jeremiah Conkling
and five others were named to sign the petition. In July 1686,
ten relatively new inhabitants complained to Gov. Dongan that
the town would not lay out land to them though they had paid
taxes for four years. After hiearings, the Gavernor ordered that
30 aeres be laid out to each. The town's protest, duted 6 Owt.
1686, was deemed a libel by the Governor and on 10 Nov, 1686
warrants were issued for the arrest and rvemoval to New York
of eleven men including Jeremiah and Benjamin Conkling.
Evidently, they were found guilty and fined, for on 9 Dee. 1686,
they petitioned asking that the penalties be remitted. The
entire proceedings were quashed when the town agreed to pay
200 pounds for a new patent from CGov. Dongan. The affair
appears to have heen one of the Governor's well knowu syueeze
plays.

Jeremigh Conkling on 16 Apr. 1697 divided ecertain land
between ‘“‘my son Cornelius Conkling and my son-in-law Thomas
Mulford.” On 7 Mar. 1707, “for good affeetion I do bear uute
my sons David Conkling and Luis Conkling,”” he grauted them
lands that eame to him from Lion Gardiner. Anunias Conk-
ling, Jr., on 7 June 1708 deeded Lewis Conkling, weaver, certuin
lands at Amagansett. The deed was confirmed by Jeremiah
Conkling as follows: ‘“Whereas my son Ananias Conekling hath
sold his brother Lewis Conckling ...... . and whereas T have
given all my lands to my sons hy my last will and testament
..... . whereby they may seem not to have full power to
alienate or dispose them till the testator’s death 1 do therefore
allow, own and warrant the above sale."’

* The Montauk Purchase was nan East Hampton venture in ennperative ownrrship and
operation. The land wus used primarily for pasture. Referenes in Kast Hawpeon yeconds
is econstant for over a bundred years. In 1748, when holdings had bepene shongrerpgedy
involved by wmltiple divisions, a simplification was devised, Euch share, ot that i,
was valued at 40 pounds, See Hedges's East Hampton, page 112,

Al
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Hig last deed of record is dated 26 Apr. 1711: ““Whereas
there is a division of land to be laid out in East Hampton
. I Jeremiah Conklin yeoman . ... ... good affec-
tion . ... .. unto David and Lewis Conkling both of Iast
Hampton’ grant permission to choose and have these lands
surveyed to them. There are several undated deseriptions of
Bast Hampton land before 1700. The description of three such
parcels is accompanied by this statement: ‘‘These three parcels
of land above mentioned 1 Jeremyah Conkling Senr. do freely
give unto my sons Jeremyah Conkling and Cornelins and my
daughter Mary Mulford wife of Thomas Mulford.”’ Jeremiah
Conkling was the first administrator of his father’s estate in
16567, but was soon succeeded by his brother-in-law, George
Miller. He appears many times as a witness or administrator
of property and estates. For many years, he was a town over-
seer, selectman or trustee, the title of the office varying with
the years. He was supervisor in 1687 and in 1699 declined to
he constable. He became a permanent grand juror in 1684.
He and his brother Benjamin set in motion the system of
nepotism by rotation in eivil offices that the East Hampton
Conklings practiced most successfully for well over 100 years.
Among his sineenres was that of “‘sweeping the chureh’ for
which he received well over a pound annually for more than
30 years in which he was succeeded by his son Cornelius for an
equally long period. Since slaves appeared in the family at an
early date, one wonders if either of them ever touched hand to
broom for actual performance of the work.

On 8§ Oect. 1714, more than two years after her husband’s
death, his widow made this conveyance: ‘“Whereas my honored
mother Mary Gardner of the Isle of Wight did by her last will
and testement give and bequeath unto me Mary Conkling the
then wife of Jeremiah Conkling, her daughter all the lands and
priveleges lying within the bounds and limits of FEasthampton
that did formerly belong unto my honored father Lion Gardiner

..... and whereas my honored and well beloved husband
Jeremmh Conkling of East hampton did by his last will and
testament hearing date § Nov. 1703 give all the aforesaid lands
and priveleges to his and my sons Jeremiah, Cornelius, David,
Lewis and Ananias, for the prevention of any trouble or con-
tention that may arise hereafter about the premeses in the
giving . ... ... [Il confirm the will and its terms.

Jeremiah Conkling’s will is not found in available records
and it seems probable, sinee the foregoing conveyance is proof
that it was probated, that it was entered in the lost ““Second
Ressions Book™ of Suffolk County.

It appears that Jeremiah Conkling and his wife spent nearly
all their married life in the house in Bast Hampton village that
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had been the home of Lion Gardiner. The gravestone in Hast
Hampton of Mary wife of Jeremiah Conkling reads: ‘‘Here
Lyeth Mrs. Mary Counkling wife of My, Jeremiah Coukling whe
died 15 June 1727 aged [illeg.] years.”” The chureh record
states that she died ‘*aged abt. 89 years, abt. 3 in morning.”’

Children of Jeremiah® Counecklyne and Mary Gardiner:

8, i, Magy®, bh. ea, 1658, 4, 14 June 1743 ae. 84, g.s, Tast Hampton,

About 1683 she m. TrHomas Murrorp, b. abt, 1656, d. 2 Nov.
1732 ae. 76, His will dated, 14 Feb. 1726/27, pro, 14 Teb,
1782/33, mentions wife Mary, sons Thomas, William, Fzekicl,
Lewis and Jeremiah. Also, daus. Rachel Debett (Dibble) and
Abiah Hedges. Also, son Egekiel’s § children, son Lewis® 2
children. Also, grandson Lewis Mulford aud grandau. Jane,
dan, of Lewis Mulford, under 18. On 21 May 1670, Japhet,
an Indian, testified as to the drowning of John Talmadge:
“Two ehildren more can testify to the sume offoet, Joremy
Miller and Mary Conklin,”’ Thomas Mulford was the son of
William Mulford, an original proprietor of East Humpton, und
his wife Sarah.

-+ 0. i, Jememiam®, b, ea. 1661 (gs.).

10, . CorNELIUSY b. ea, 1665 (g.s.).

411, iv. Davip®, b. ca, 1667 (ch, ree.).

412, v, Lewis®, b, ea, 1673 (gs.).

413, vi, ANANIASY, b.osay 1675,

[To be continued)

ROBERT WALKER OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

By Joux Insiey Copmyarow, of Olivet, Michigan

In the New England Historical & Genealogical Register, vol. T
(1853), p. 40, there appears the following deposition by Robert
Walker of Boston:

Robert Walker of Boston, Linnen webster, aged about 72 years, testi-
fieth vpon oath:—That he, this deponent, about 56 years sinee, lineing
with his father in the Town of Manechester in Lancashire within the
Renlme of England, did then know ome Mr Henry Sewall, whe lued
4t the same Towne and in v same streeto with this deponent’s father,
being his ounerthwart neighbour, and that afterwurds the said Mr Henry
Sewall remoued with his family to New England, and there dwelt in
the Towne of newberye, this deponent being well nequainted with him
after his comeing to new England & frequently visited by him: when
hig oceasions drew him to Boston. And further this deponent [saith}
that Mr Henry Sewall now lineing at newbery in new England (whom
he hath knowne from his youth) is the only reputed sonn of the
sforesaid named Nr Henry Sewall, sometimes of newbery, deceasesd:
And that the deponent neuer knew or heard that he had any other
sonn but him: Taken vpon oath 10: aprill: 1679 before Symond
Bradstreet Govr. Daniell Gookin senr Assist. Vere copia Attests Hil
Hard Verin Cler,
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ject, or that emphasis has been placed on the significance of the
choice of John Todd and Samuel Hunt as Mary Grant’s bonds-
men, which seems to be a particularly important point.

Therefore, as all factors such as names, locations, dates, land
and probate records appear to dovetail and so favor the Hunt
theory, and ag nothing convincingly contradictory has yet been
found, is it not logical, until such time as evidence to the eon-
trary is presented, to accept this view?
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THE FAMILY OF CONCKELYNE, CONKLIN AND
CONKLING IN AMERICA

By CoNgLIN MANN, Eaq., of New York, N. Y.
{Continued from Vol. 21, p. 58]

5. Bewniamin® CoNcELYNE (Anantas*) probably was born
before 1 Feh. 1637/38 as his brother-in-law, George Miller,
administrator of his father’s estate, agreed to pay him his por-
tion on 1 Feh, 1658/59. He was old enough on 26 Dee, 1657
to testify at Bast Hampton in a eivil suit over hogs. He was
of East Hampton in several land conveyances in 1666, and in
March and June 1667, but on 22 and 26 Oet. 1667, he was of
Elizabethtown, N, J. On the latter dates, he sold part of his
East Hampton holdings including ten acres of woodlot, ‘‘that
I had purchased of my loving brother Jeremiah Concklin,”’ to
James Seellinger. Hatfleld’s Elizabeth, N. J. states that ‘“Ben-
jamin Coneklin came with his East Hampton neighbors hut, for
some unexplained cause, soon after veturned to his former
home.”"  In a running list of the 65 inhabitants of Elizabethtown
and its jurisdietion beginning 19 Feb. 1665, the name Benjamin
Conkling appears. He was back in East Hampton by June

i1,
Benjamin Conkling began to acguire land in Bast Hampton
at an early age {even befnre hig sojourn in New Jersey), and
became one of the most important of the town’s proprietors.
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His deals in land and livestoclk are frequent in the records.
He also appears five times in Southold town records in 1687 as
a buyer of land there, but, as he was never in residence and the
transactions appear to have no genealogical significance, they
are omitted.

He married at East Hampton about 1668 IMannah Mulford,
daughter of Justice John Mulford, an original proprietor and
an early justice of the town. John Mulford’s will, dated 4 Dee.
1683, mentions daughter Hannah wife of Benjamin Conklin
‘“who hag five children.”” Her brother Capt. Samuel Mulford
married Hester, sister of Benjamin Conkling, and her younger
sister Mary married Jeremiah Miller, a nephew of Benjamin
C'onkling.

John Mulford, Sr., on 13 Mar. 1674/75, conveyed important
lands to “‘Benjamin Conckling my son-in-law and to Hannah
his wife, my daughter.”” On 23 May 1678, Benjamin Conkling
repurchased much of the land he had previously sold to James
Skellinger. Ile was assessed on 103 pounds in 1675 and on over
148 pounds in 1683. John Stratton, Sr., brought aetion on
19 Apr. 1676 against Stephen Hand and Benjamin Coneklinge
‘‘econcerning a voyvage toward New Yorke with ve coullers and
comysions of the Duteh.”” This action may have been a bit of
political backfire due to Conkling’s course following a demand
by the Dutch in 1673, when, upon recapturing New York, they
summoned the magistrates and other town officers to New
Amsterdam to swear allegiance fo the States General and the
Prince of Orange,

Under date of 23 June 1679, the East Fumpton records state:
*The Militia of This Towne being at present without eoulours
<+« ... Benjamin Conckling made this tender yt he would
purchase a pair of coulours for the use and serviee of this place
such as may bee good and suitable fir vt end ¥t at his owne
cost and charge if hee might bee freed for his life time from
trainings and from wachings and wardings uppon ernarie times
onely yt if such times of danger and trouble should befall us
¥t wee must stand uppon our defence for our safety soe as 1o
keep corts of gnard for or [our] waches in ve night scason and
ward by day and for feare of some apparvent danger vt yn hea
did not look to bee freed when all men in Generall was to stand
upon the defense uppon which aceount as is here spoken his
motion is accepted and he freed by consent of ye said towne.””
After his voyage toward New York ““with the colors,”” his
desire to avoid the drudgery of muster day evidently compli-
cated the situation of the politically minded Mr. Conkling, bat,
it must be admitted that he solved the matter in a most adreit
way.

—



g._

N
o

CONCKELYNE, CONELIN AND CONKLING 135

A whaling adventure with the Indians, dated 5 Mar. 1650/81,
like all documents of that type gave Conekling the long end of
the bargain. The town’s troubles with Gov. Dongan have been
discussed in the article on Jeremiah Conkling (No. 3). Ben-
jamin Conkling played a part, was under arrest and apparently
fined. Omn 11 June 1686, he was one of six named by the town
‘“to act in behalfe of the purchasers and proprietors in ye Legall
Defence of their Just rights in their Liands or for ye confirmation
of their right and to stand by them in what they shall determine
uppon with respect to ye Premises or ye Major part.” He was
serving as town Commissioner on 11 Nov, 1686 when a warrant
was issued for his arrest.

Benjamin Conkling’s first town office was that of fence viewer
in 1674. He was constable in 1678, 81, 82 and 88; assessor in
1687 and 91. Commissioner for the trial of small cases in 1686.
In 1693, he became one of his Majesty's Justices for Suffolk
County and remained a magistrate for several years.

East Hampton church records state that Benjamin Conckling
died 3 Feh, 1708/9 ““abt. noon.”” No gravestone or will hag heen
found. He was a man of considerable property and it may be
that the settlement of his estate was entered in the famous “‘See-
ond Sessions Book'” of Suffolk County lost many years ago.
Mrs, Hannah Conklin, his widow, died 4 Feb. 1712 ‘‘abt two in
ye morning I suppose between 60 and 70 years old,”’ according
to the Rev, Nathaniel Huntting’s records. Presumably she was
born hetween 1646 and 1648,

Children of Benjamin® Concklyne and Hannah Mulford:

414, i Jomw®, b, ca. 1669,
-+15. i, AxNAwN1As%, b, ea. 1672,
~+16. iil. BENJAMIN®, b, ca. 1678,
17. iv. MERcyY?, b, ew. 1681, m, 10 May 1705, Isaac MuLroRD,
<18, v. Erramim®, bh. ca. 1683,

10, vi. Jawe®, m. (1) 15 May 1699 WarLtER BrowrE of Oyster Ponds,
Southeld, Adm., on est. of Walter Browne of Southold
granted to wid, Jane Brown, 1 May 1711, She m, (2) 15 July
1712, Daniel Edwards of East Hampton,

20, vil. Haxxvanp®, bp, ‘4 June 1704 age abt 13 yrs.”’ m. 27 Nov. 1711,
TimorHy Woon of Huntington, L. I (E. H, ch, rees.)

Perhaps other daughters,

0. Jepemnan® Coxznxe (Jeremich?, Anenies') was born
ahout 1661 at Bast Hampton, L., I, and first appears in the town
records when he witnessed an agreement for his uncle Benjamin
Conkling on 3 Mar. 1680/81. At a date unrecovered but prob-
ably by 1690, he married Jaxe Lupray, daughter of Henry
Luadlam and Jane Shaw of Southampton. While they appar-
ently died childless, much genealogical confusion has surrounded




138 THE AMERICAN GENEALOGIST

them cne to inability to identify Mrs. Jane Conkling’s maiden
name despite the many clews that her will offered, and the
jumbling of two younger Jevemiah Conklings with Jeremiah.?
It is suggested that an article entitled “William Ludlam of
Southampton,’” in the AMERICAN GENBAaLOGIST for July 1943 be
read in connection with this account of Jeremiah® Conkling
which omits considerable data eontained in the Ludlam article.

Because of his natural ability and the faet that he was his
father’s heir, Jeremiah Conkling was an important man in Iast
Hampton throughout his life. He was known as Junior until
1712, As early as 1694, he was a trustee of the town and his
name appears in the records with regularity. The Rev. Mr.
Huntting’s record states that he died 7 Aug. 1734 about 9 AL ML
aged about 73, His gravestone verifies his age but placves his
death 9 August. His will (and that of his wife) has eaused
many an eyebrow to lift and if read literally with present Jday
use of terms in mind appears to indieate that several nf the
heneficiaries were illegitimate* Aectually, because FKast Mamp-
ton sheltered others of the same surnames and given names as
the beneficiaries, the testator (and later his wife) was merely
attempting to be exaet in his deseriptions of who was who, His
will, dated 11 Jan. 1782/33, probated 26 Aug. 1734, leaves a life
interest in certain property to his wife Jane. It mentions Elisha
Conekling, eldest son of beloved brother Corneling Conckling;
Jane Conckling, the daughter of Samuel Conckling, deceased;
““she to have 20-pounds when 18 or married.” As residuary
legatee the will names “my adopted son Jeremisgh Conckling
(who is the natural son of the ahove said Elisha Conckling).”
After the widow’s death, certain property was to go to *‘above
mentioned Jeremiah Conekling (as I have ealled my adopted
son},”’  Elisha Conckling was to have eare of his son and of his
estate as guardian until he was twenty.

The will of Mrs. Jane Conkling, signed 11 Apr. 1735, probated
29 May 1741, does not mention Jeremiash Conekling her hus-
hand’s heir but leaves two cows to Jeremiaht Conckling ““the

* See ande, vol, 20, p. 8, regarding the use and meaning of the term “prnral,—Ed0

t Boenuse of the confusion that exists concerning the esvly Jereosah Clonklings of
Hampton they are listed here as follows:

Jeremiah? Concklyne (Ananiast),

Jeremink® Conckling {(Jeremiah?, Ananiast).

Jeremiah* Conkling (David®, Jeremich®, Ananmigs®), b. en. 169, m. 29 Jume 1717, Jore
Parsons, Lived at Amugansett, He was drowned in a whale bost aceident 24 b 1719,

His widow married Giles Gardiner, 3 Oct. 1723,
”.(];g%ninh‘ Conkling (Cornelius®, Jeremiah2, Ananias!), bp. 4 Dee. 1767, d. 13 Tub.

Jeremish® Conkling (Jereminh®, David®, Jeremiah?, Angniast), b. ea. 1718, bp. 12 Mar.
1726 /27. He was known as “Jeremish of Amagansett.”” He m. 21 Dee. 1741, Mary Duyton,
He & 21 July 1748 “sge 28" A son Jeremish® d. in infsney,

Jereminh® Conkling (Elisha*, Cornelius®, Jeremioh®, Angnigs!), b, cu. 1721782, hp. 1
Mar. 1721/22. Called Jr. 8s & young man, and later captsin, He m. 4 Nov, 1742, Abigail
Herriman, His son Jeremish®, bp. in Mar. 1748740, removed tv Smithfield, Dutehiess
County, where he himself went about 1781, He d. 15 Feb, 1784,
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natural son of Jane Gardiner, the wife of Giles Gardiner.”
(This man was known as Jeremiah Conckling of Amagansett.)
As residuary legatee, the will names Jane Conckling, ‘‘the
daughter of Samuel Conckling, deceased, and Clemens Huntting,
surviving.” Bequests are left to ‘‘my three sisters Sarah Leek,
Deborah Parsons and Hannah Conckling.”” John Huntting and
his wife Clemens, executors.

Mrs, Jane (Lumdlam) Conkling died 26 Apr. 1741 age 76 yrs.
6 mo., according to her gravestone at Fast Hampton.

10. Capr. Corxernivs® ConxniNg (Jeremiah®, Ananias*) was
born about 1665 in East Hampton, L. I, and first appears in
that town’s vecords in a financial report dated 7 Apr. 1690.
In 1692, he became constable of East Hampton and for the fol-
lowing 50 years was continuously in office. He succeeded to
his father’s position of leadership in the clan Conkling and was
a man of first importance throughout his life. The Conkling
rotation in office which began in 1653 continued steadily through-
out hig life and the records show that no other family in East
Hampton rivaled the Conklings’ sustained local political influ-
ence for a hundred years.

By 1692, Cornelius Conkling was warning the town meetings.
On 2 Apr. 1695, the town records refer to him as BEnsign Conk-
ling, a commission he apparently held until about 1708 when
he became captain of the militia, apparently never having held
the rank of lieutenant. e still was captain of No. 1 company
in 1715.

His land transactions began 6 Apr. 1693 when he and Thomas
Mulford, his brother-in-law, bought large holdings of William
Miller, His name appears frequently thereafter as purchaser or
seller. He and Jeremiah and Elias Mulford witnessed the will
of Robert Dayton, 11 Feb, 1710/11. He was named to serve on
a committes of six to settle the houndary line with a similar
committee from Southampton, 18 June 1695. He was acting as
a surveyor of lands at this time and later. On 18 Mar. 1695/96,
he took over the earmark of Josiah Edwards declaring “‘it nsed
many years before.”” In a list of rights in the Fatting Pasture
in 1707 he is credited with 21:6:58, the largest amount among
the holdings. He served on a committee to get the meeting
house repaired, 28 May 1706, and on 18 June that year was busy
ordering ‘“the tanner and his wife to depart from the town.”
In May 1712, Cornelius Conkling beeame town clerk of Tast

There are still two other Jereminh Conkling of this period, Jeremiah (Timothy®.2,
Johnt) ot Huntington, L. I, and Jeraminh Conklin of Branford, Conn., who is called

“formerly of Greenwich, Great Britain” in the notice of his marriage on 1 Mar, 1725 /26
with Hannah Elwell of Branford. ‘This man appears in Conn, as early as 1716
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Hampton and served continuously as sueh for 36 years. The
Conklings arve the most completely recorded family in the town
records of that day. By Dec. 1713, he had succeeded to his
father’s church-sweeping sinecure.

He again entered his earmark on 17 Apr. 1725, and on 13 Jan.
1725/26, he entered his brand, a ““C’’ on the left shoulder. On
the same day, Corneliug Conkling, Jr., entered his brand, a <‘C"
on the right shoulder. Cornelius Conkling was one of the
commissioners for Tast Hampton named to lay out highways
under the General Assembly’s act of 1724, He figured promi-
nently in various distributions of common lands in the 1730,
He served as town trustee for 18 terms between 1692 and 1730,
He was supervisor in 1705, assessor in 1711, and treasurer in
1714,

The records of the Rev. Nathaniel Huntting state: ** The wife
of Capt, Conkline died about sunrise 13 Ang. 1712’ Her grave-
stone in South yard, East Hampton reads, *‘Mrs. Mary Coni-
uwwe wife of Capt. Cornelius Conkling died 13 Aug. 1712 in
Her 44th Year.”” Despite the prominence of Capt. Conkling’s
name in the town records, nothing has been found to indicate her
surname, It has been stated that she was a Mary Mulford, A
Mulford wife would be a logical probability. My own guess,
however, is that she was a Southampton woman, perliaps a
Howell. That opinion is based on Cornelius Conkling’s elose
personal and civie contact with Southampton, the fact that at
least three of his danghters married into Southampton families,
and the name Elisha which he gave his eldest son several years
after it appearved in the Howell family,

Mr, Huntting states in his record: ““Oct. ye last 1748 Capt.
Conklin aged about T0 died.”’ The gravestone in South vard
reads: *“*Capt. Corneliug Conkling died 30 Oect. 1748 in His 54th
Year.” Mr, Huntting made some astoundingly had guesses on
ages but that he should have so under-estimated the age of &
man with whom he had close eontact seems ineonceivable. Pos-
sibly, his writing has been misread.

On 30 Dec. 1748, the executors of Capt. Cornelius Coukling
drew lot No. 39 in a distribution of land at Northwest und
Napeague. Ividently, his will was probated but no sien of it
has been found. Perhaps, it was entered in the famous Lost
Sessions Book of Suffolk County.

Children of Cornelius® Conkling and Mary (Mulferd?,
Howell §) :

421, i Eusmga*, b, Jan. 1690.
-+22,  #, CorNEnIvs!, b. say 1692,
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iil., EsruERY b, say 1604, m. 10 Jan. 1711/12, Davip PiErsoN of
Bridgehampton,

24, iv, $PmmerY, b, ca. 1696, m. 15 Aug. 1715, ELIPHALET STRATTON,
son of Cornelius Stratton.
26. v. Marrma‘, b, say 1697, bp. 25 Aug. 1700, m. 22 Dee. 1713,

Erurain HALSEY of Southampton. They removed to Morris-
town, N. J. She d. in 1771 age 75. He was b. ca. 1693/94
and d. 21 Aug, 1764. They had nine children,

26. vi. Dzporam*, b, say 1700, bap. 25 Aug. 1700, m. 24 Deec. 1719,
SrepHEN Hrrricx of Southampton,

27. vil, RacHELY, bp, 2 Jan, 1708/4, m. 15 Mar, 1721/22, JoEN STAN-
NARD of Saybrook, Conn.

28. viii, JermMIAHE‘, bp. 14 Dee. 1707. Rev, Mr, Huntting records *¢13
Feb. 1708/% a son of Capt. Conkling abt. a year and 2 or 3
months old died about 4 in ye morning.”’

20, ix. Mamyt, bp, 12 Mar, 1710, m. 19 Aug. 1736, Opapiag WELLES
of Southold, called dau. of Capt, Conkling in reec.

11. Davip® Conkriwg (Jeremiah?, Ananias!), who was born
at Hast Hampton, L, I, ca. 1667, declared his earmark, 4 Nov.
1691, Land owned by him is first mentioned in a deed of
Abraham Schellenger’s on 23 Mar, 1695/96. He contributed
3ds. to William Schellenger’s expenses for getting a minister,
6 Apr. 1697. On 24 Mar. 1704/5, he purchased land at
Napeague of John Hoppin. He owned an 8-pound right in
Montauk in 1706/7. On 7 May 1707 and 26 Apr. 1711, he
received land from his father, Jeremiah Conkling. He was a
soldier in Capt. Matthias Burnett’s company in 17156, A Mon-
tauk proprietors’ list of 1727 mentions him ag having made pay-
ments in 1702 and 1703. On 28 Jan. 1712, he witnessed the
will of Jacob Schellenger. He sold Amagansett land to Elias
Mulford on 10 Mar. 1732/33, and drew 8514 acres in the com-
monage distribution of 16 Apr. 1736, His name appears sev-
eral times in the town land records, his chief holdings heing at
Amagangett. He was one of the few East Hampton Conklings
who seems never to have held a town office.

“The wife of David Conkling died abt. 1PM 30 th Mar, 1714,
wrote the Rev. Mr. Huntting. She was a church member.
David Conkling died 4 Dee. 1738 ““abt. noon aged abt. 71 yrs.”’
The will of David Conkling, yeoman of East Iampton, signed
90 Dee. 10th Year of Relgn of George IL,” probated 8§ Sept.
1738, gives 1o “‘grandson Jeremiah Conkling the house his father
formerly dwelt in,”’ and other important property and lands
Also, to Jeremiah, ““my loom and reeds when he comes to age of
91,7 It Jeremiah died, then “‘I give all these to my son David.”
Son David to receive all Montauk lands, Daunghter Jane men-
tioned. ““The remainder of movable estate divided among all
my daughters that survive me.”” Son David, executor. Nothing
has been found to indieate the name of his wife.
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Children of David? Conkling and ———:
~-30, i, Jereatiaz?, b, en, 1694,
481, i, Davipd, b, en. 1696,

42, i, Luoy?, b, ea. 1698, Rev, Mr. Huntting wrote: €12 Sept. 1716
Luey Conkling died at New York under ye doctor’s hands age
abt, 20 vrs.?”  Of her, Joshun Hempstead of New London
wrote: €7 Sept. 1716, Tim Mulford sayled for N. York.
Lucy Conklin is with him, gone to a Doetor, BShe is pinning
away almost to nothing.’”’ And later: ‘*She died mear N.Y.
with ye dector Griswold, Had 2 fits at night and ome uext
day at noon.’”’

33, iv. Samamd, bp, 21 Apr, 1700, m, 17 June 1725, Isaac DARNES, Jr.,
who was bp. 26 Apr. 1705, son of Capt. Isaae Barnes and
Aunna Rogers, She d. 22 Oet, 1736, and he m. (2) IHannah,
dau. of Ananias and Hannah (Ludlam) Conkling,

84, v, PamEeNCe, bp. 3 Nov. 1700, m. 0 Oet. 1729, Joun Pansoxs, Jr.

435, vi. Sanvstd, bp. 3 May or Mar, 1702,

36, vit, Simont, bp. 18 Mar. 1704/5. Mr. Huntting states: ‘730 May
1718 Simon son of David Conkling killed with thunder at the
home of Jeremiah Conkling.”’

57, viil. Krezamé, bp. 80 Mar. 1707, Mr. Huntting wrote: ‘* A daughter
of David Conkling aged about 20 years d. 22 Nov. 1726,7*

38, ix. Racmerd, Lp, 10 July 1709, m, 12 Jan, 1785736, Daxiew
Epwanps,

89, = Traperaxcy!, by, § Aug, 1712, m. 31 Oet. 1734, Timothy Miller,
She d. 23 Nov. 1740,

40, xi. Jaxet b, 22 Feb, 1713/14, bp. 28 Mar. 1714, m. 4 Nov. 1736,
Hewry Sugeraiis. He was born at Bast Hampton in 1717,
a son of Reeompense Sherrill and Margaret Parsons, She d.
23 Apr. 1798 at Richmond, Mass,

12, Lews® Congrwe (Jeremich®, Ananiast), who was horn
ca. 1673 at East Hampton, L. 1., appears first as a witness to a
deed, 16 Oct. 1693. He entered his carmark on 12 Apr. 1695
and again on 14 Nov, 1706, About 1700, he married Mary
StrarToN, daughter of John® Stratton of Bast Hampion, ay is
shown by three deeds in Suffolk County land vecords,  On 6 Mar.
1722, Joshua Hildreth and wife Ann deeded to John Hedges,
Liuis Conkling and Thomas Chatfield their interest in land given
us by “‘our father John Stratton of Fast Hampton,” reserviug
an interest in Montauk. On the same day, Isaar Jessup and
wife Sarah made a similar deed to Hedges, Conkling and (hat-
field. On 14 May 1744, John Stratton, Jr., gave a quit-elain
deed to Lewis Conkling and others, in support of the 1722 deeds.
The copy is very much faded hut one essential paragraph is
clear: ‘“estate that my grandfather John Stratton’ gave to his
“five daughters namely Ruth Hedges, Sarah Jessup, Mary
Conkling, Hannah Chatfield and Ann Hildreth.”’

Liewis Conklin’s name appears many times in the town’s land
and civil records. Lewis Conkling, weaver, purchased a home
lot and four acres of James Barbour, 24 July 1703 and on 26
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July 1703, he paid William Edwards, Jr., 53 pounds for 10 acres
at Amagansett, He owned a 10-pound right in Montauk in
1706/7. He and his brother David purchased land of Nathaniel
Bishop on 10 Sept. 1706 and on the next day they bought
Amagansett land of John Shaw. On 7 June 1708, Jeremiah
Conkling confirmed a deed in which ‘‘my son Ananias Conkling
dr., hath sold his brother Lewis Conkling his last division of land
at Amagansett.”’ Lewis Conkling and his cousin John Conkling
(No. 14}, both being weavers, traded land on 7 June 1710, Lewis
giving up 10 acres at Amagansett for 10 acres on the Amagan-
sett—East Hampton highway. He witnessed the will of Jacob
Schellinger on 28 Jan. 1712, and along with Ananias Conkling
and Thomas Edwards was named an exeeutor of Josiah Edwards’
will, 9 Feb. 1712/13,

On 2 May 1710, he and his brother Cornelius, Jeremiah Miller
and Isaaec Mulford purchased a quarter of a share in Montauk
for 48 pounds. He received a grant in rights of commonage
from his father, 26 Apr. 1711. Lewis Conkling, yeoman, and
wife Mary sold Thomas Edwards 16 acves, 16 Mar, 1722. He
is on the 1727 list of Montank proprietors, and drew 101 acres
of eommonage in distribution of 16 Apr. 1736. He traded cer-
tain holdings in East Hampton town spot on 13 May 1736 and
on 6 Web, 1739/40 he received 45 acres of commonage.

Lewis Conkling served in Capt. Matthias Burnett’s company
of East Hampton militia in 1715. He was a town trustee in
1705, "11, ’19, 29 and ’33; assessor in 1709 and '14. He died
2 QOct, 1746 abt 5 oclock A.M. aged abt. 70 yrs.,”’ according to
the Rev. Mr. Huntting’s record. His gravestone at Amagansett
states that he died 2 Oct. 1746 in his 74th year. Mary, wife of
Lewis Conkling, owned the covenant, 21 Apr. 1700. Her grave-
stone at Amagansett states that she died 15 Nov. 1752 in her
76th vear. The Rev. Mr. Buell, who succeeded Mr., Huntting at
East Hampton, erred in entering on the church record (printed
record) the statement that “Widow Conkling widow of Sineus
died Nov. 1752.”> Her son Sineus lived for over fifty years
after her death. Perhaps, the copyist misread ‘‘Lewis’ as
“Sineus.” The will of Marah (Mary) Conckling of East Hamp-
ton, ‘‘widow and relic of Lewis Conckling late of the same
place,”” dated 15 Aug. 1747, proved 11 Jan. 1754, mentions
beloved son Sineus Conckling; four grandchildren William,
Zebady, Abraham and Elizabet Pierson (to each 5 pounds when
of lawful ape); two grandchildven Christopher and Sineus
Dibble (to each 10 pounds when of lawful age); three grand-
children Daniel, Lewis and John Miller (20 pounds among them
when of lawful age). Residue divided nto six parts and
daughters now living, i.e., Easter, Zerviah and Abigail to have
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cach a sixth part and each set ol grandehildren a sixth part.
Son Sineas and friend Buarnet Miller, executors.
Mary (Stratton) Conkling was a daughter of John® Stratton
{(dohnt) and Mary James, daughter of Rev. Thomas James,
minister at East Hampton for forty-six years. Her father was
fiving in 1722 when the Hildreths and Jessups conveyed to
Iledges, Conkling and Chatfield. ‘‘A Book of Strattons’ errs
in crediting Mary (Stratton) Conkling and her four sisters as
children of John Stratton, 4th, who gave the deed of 1744, Aectu-
ally, they were his aunts.
Children of Lewis® Conklin and Mary Stratton:
41. i, Enwzaperad, bp. 21 Apr. 1700, m, 7 Jan. 1720, Appimanm
Pierson. D. by 1747,

492, i, Lewis*, bp, 18 Jan. 1701702, m. 22 Qet. 1724, Erizapern
Murronp. In 1730, as TLewis Conkling, Jr., he was paid
2:18:16 for boarding Joscph Miller for 11 weeks. He appar-
ently was dead without issue when his mother made her will -
““Mrs, Elizabeth, wife of Mr. Lewis Conkling died 30 Oet,
1765 in Her 61st Year,”’ g.s. Iast Hampton. .

48, iil. EsmmErt, bp. 3 Sept. 1704, m. § Peh, 1725/20, DAVID BAKER.

44, iv, Maxv*, bp. 11 Apr. 1708, m. 12 Nov, 1734, Troamas Disnne, Jr.
Called dau. of Lewis Conkling in ch. rec.

45, v, Msroy!, bp. 7 May 1710, m. 14 Dee. 1732, Joun Mintam, Jr,

46. vi. Isaace, bp. 25 Jan. 1712713, Rev, Mr. Huntting's ree.:
€64 July 1744, Isaae Conkling son of Lewis Clonkling who
had been erazed in his understanding several years died abt,
32 yrs. old.”’

47, wvii. Zenviamt, bp. 8 Jan. 1715/16, m. § Jan. 1737/38, SaMUEL
MurLrorp, Jr.

-1.48. viii, Swvevgt, bp. 19 Qct. 1718,

49, ix, Apmgaint, bp. 16 Apr. 1721, m. 5 Oct. 1740, NATHANIEL BaKER
of Elizabethtown, N. J., ‘‘gson of Daniel Baker of East
Hampton, deccased.?”” Called dauw. of Lewis Conkling in
ch. ree.

13, Awaniss® Cowngrwg (Jeremiah®, Anantast} was born
about 1674 at Bast Hampton, I.. I. Throughout life, he was
called Junior, sinee he was a few months younger than his
cousin, Ananias® Conkling (Benjomin®, dnaniast). e first
appears in Fast Hampton records in 1706/7, when eredited with
an 8-pound right in Montauk. Hiy parentage is proved by a deed
to his brother Lewis Conkling, weaver, signed 7 June 1708.
This transfer covered Amagansett lands and was eonfirmed by
their father, Jeremiah Conkling, Ananias Conkling served as a
private in Capt. Cornelius Conkling’s company of East Hampton
men in 1715, He was named in 1727 among Montauk proprie-
tors. He served as a trustee of East Hampton in 1710, '18, 23,
26, ’28 and 30, and as assessor in 1708 and 1722.

On 3 Apr. 1701, Ananias Conkling married MARTEA STRATTON,
daughter of Joseph Stratton, whose will, dated 8 QOet. 1722,
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mentions daughter Martha wife of Ananias Conkling and grand-
children Joseph, Margaret and Mary, ‘‘children of my son-in-
law Anaunias Conkling.”” He probably was the Ananias Conk-
ling named exeeutor in the will of Jacoh Schellenger, 28 Jan.
1712, “*Ananias Conkling Jr. son of Jeremiah Conkling Sr.,”’
owned the covenant on 11 Jan. 1701/2, His wife is recorded as
joining the chureh that same day.

“‘Ananias Conlding Jr. son of Jeremiah Conkling deceased
died 8 Sept. 1730,” the Rev. Mr. Huntting enteved in the church
records. Ile died intestate and letters were granted to his son
Joseph Conkling on 22 Oct, 1730, His widow, Martha, married
second, on 19 Sept. 1733, as his second wife, Deacon John®
Mulford (Jehn').

Children of Ananias® Conkling and Martha Stratton:

H50. i, Margarert, bp. 11 Jan, 1701/2, m, 19 May 1720, Jorx CooPER
of Bridgehampton, L. 1.

51, i, Janet, bp. 80 Jan. 170374, ‘A child of Ananias Conkling
son of Jeremigh Conkling died 4 Oct. 1704.7° The ch. refer-
enee probably is to her.

52, iH, Mamyé, bp. 7 Oct, 1705, m. 23 Nov, 1721, JereMmiAn HALSEY, Jr.,
of Bridgebampton,

48, fv. Haxwam®, bp. 14 Sept, 1707, ““Haungh daughter of Ananias
Conklin died 12 Sept. 1720 aged abt. 20 years,”” ch, ree. of
Mr, Huntting. Her g.s. gives her age as 13 yrs.

34 v. JosEPH®, bp. 13 Nov, 1709,

55, vi. Zmmrviamt, bp. 11 Dee. 1711, ‘A daughter of Ananias Conk-
ling Jr. died about 2 P.3M. 24 Mar. 1712,° Presumably Mr.
Huntting referred to her.

56. vii, A sont, unnamed. ‘°27 Nov. 1712 a son of Ananias Conkling Jr.
died a little hefore midnight about a week old.”’

57. viil. MarraAS, bp, 27 Dee. 1713, d. 26 July 1715. Ch. ree.

58 ix. Awnaxiast, bp, 15 July 1716, 4. 1 Oct. 1716. Ch, ree,

59, = A childt, ‘A child of Ananias Copnkling Jr. died soon affer
it wag born 23 May 1717.77 Ch. ree.

60, xi. A daughter’, unnamed. ‘A daughter of Ananias Conkling Jr,

died 4 Sept, 1718 aged abt, 6 weeks,’? Ch, ree,

)

14, Joux® Congrine (Benjomin®, Ananiast), born by 1669
at Fast Hampton, L. I, or Elizabethtown, N. J., appears first in
Tast Hampton records in a financial veport 7 Apr. 1695, He
entered his carmark, 8 Apr. 1695, On 17 Apr. 1695, he and
Rev. Thomas James exchanged land, ‘‘John Conkling with the
consent of his father Mr. Benjamin Conkling.”” On 6 Apr.
1697, he is eredited with 3s. on aecount of money gathered to
defray charges *‘when William Skellinger was sent for a min-
ister,”’ It was then that Bast Hampton selected the Rev.
Nathaniel Huntting who not only became a most beloved min-
ister, but today is thanked by genealogical researchers for his
painstaking eare in keeping his records.
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John Conkling entered his brand mark 15 Dec. 1697, a
diamond on the right thigh or horn. He changed this brand teo
the left thigh or horn on 20 June 1698. On 25 Oect. 1701, he
purchased ‘‘a one-third part of a tenth part and also a one-third
part of a two-thirds part of a share throughout Montauk,’’ of
Cornelius Miller. He sold these rights on 21 Dee. 1702, and on
4 June 1702 bought land at Amagansett. He had a 10-pound
right in Montauk in the list of 1706/7. He and his cousin Lewis
Conkling (No. 12) exchanged lands 7 Apr. 1710, both being
weavers. On 23 April 1710, he sold seven acres near the brick
kills to John Edwards, cordwainer. Nathan Miller of East
Hampton on 1 Feb. 1719/20 sold nine acres “‘unto John Conk-
ling my father-in-law.”” John Conkling is named in the 1727
list of Montauk proprietors. In a distribution of common lands
on 16 Apr. 1736, he drew 40 acres, and received 12 acres more
on 6 Feb. 1739/40. He served as trustee of Fast Hampton in
1707 and 1723, as assessor in 1710 and 1720, fence viewer in
1715, constable in 1716 and 1725, and overseer of highways in
1722,

“The wife of John Conlkling Sr. died abt. noon 12 Sept. 1735
aged abt 70 years,”” wrote the Rev. Mr. Huntting in the chureh
record, She had joined the church in 1724, According to Mr.
Huntting, “‘John Conkling died abt. sundown 28 Apr. 1746 aged
near 77."7 The will of John Conkling of East Hampton, signed
23 Jan. 1739, probated 23 Aug. 1746, mentions sons John, Iilias
and Jonathan. Awmong the properties mentioned were one-
twelfth of a Montauk share to each son, a home lot and a sharve
of the horse mill to son Jonathan and ‘‘the Joshua lot”’ to Elias,
Nothing has been found to indicate the surname or even the
eiven name of John Conkling’s wife.

Children of John® Conkling and ———:

=61, i Jomx4 b, say 1690,
62, i, Winpiam®, bp. 4 June 1704 at age of 12 (A Chrenicle of Every
Day People by Gardiner).
63. i, Marvt, b. say 1694, m. 13 Mar. 1710/11, Naruay Mirtes.
64. iv. Racuer, bp. as an adulf 11 Jam, 1718718, m, 21 Bept. 1793,
DARIEL JONES.
63. v. AxvY bp. as an adult 11 Jan. 1718/19, m, (1) 26 Dae, 1720,
JOHY STRATTON, drd, whose sister Mary m, Lewis Conkling
(No, 12}, John Stratton d. 20 Sept. 1721 and in 1725 his
widow m. (2) Matthew Dayton. John Stratton named his
.broi-;gilaw John Conkling sole ex., of his will which he signed
i al,
66. vi. Trsmoruy*, bp. as an adult 30 May 1725, He, evidently, 4. ap.
67. vil. Amicairé, bp. as an adult 26 Nov. 1727. She joined the ch, on
same day. She m, 22 Nov. 1783, Gwrox Hrpers., Called
dan. of John Conkling Sr., in mar. ree.
-+-68. viii. ELAS', bp. as an adult, 26 Nov. 1727,
-+68. ix. JowNATHAN, bp. as an adult, 4 Aug. 1734,
70. = A son®, unnamed. ‘11 May 1712 a som of Jobn Conklines died
abt. 11 at night aged abt. 9 mo.,*’ Rev, Mr, Huntting.

#
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15, Awnaniss® CoNguine (Benjemin®, Ananius), who was
born at Fast HMampton, L. 1, ca. 1672/73, entered his earmark
in that town, 12 Apr. 1695. He was assessed 9p. on 10 Apr.
1703 toward a town payment to the Indians, He had a 10-pound
right in Montauk in 1706/7 and appears on the 1727 list of
Montauk proprietors. He drew 25 acres in the distribution of
commonage of 16 Apr. 1736. By 12 Oect. 1701, he was a land
owner in East Hampton, and on 16 Oct. 1701 he sold land to
Ephraim Tdwards. He served in Capt. Matthias Burnett’s
company of East Hampton militia in 1715, Usually, in the early
records he is ealled Senior to distinguish him from his eousin
Ananias Conkling (No, 13) who was slightly younger. He was
assessor in 1714 and 1722 and a town trustee in 1711, ’16 and ’17.

About 1696, he married Han~var Lopram, daughter of Henry?
Ludlam (Wellieam) and Jane Shaw. Both were early members
of the church and on 1 June 1701, he owned the covenant, He
lived in the Amagansett seetion of East Hampton. Rev. Mr.
Huntting recorded his death: °“Ananias Conkling Sr. died
about 1 AM. aged 67 yrs. 6 mo. 1 Mar. 1739/40.” His grave-
stone at Amagansett verifies date and age.

The will of Ananias Conkling of East Hampton, yeoman,
signed 11 Apr. 1739, probated 26 Aug. 1740, mentions wife
Hannah who was to have use of one-third of lands, the dwelling
house and a negro woman; son Henry Conkling, that part of
dwelling house where he now dwells, lands, ete.; daughter
Bethiah Hicks; daughter Hannah Barnes; sons Ananias and
Lemuel, six shillings each; sons Nathan, Benjamin, Daniel and
Josiah, to each 18 pounds. Residue divided among sons last
mentioned.

Children of Ananias® Conkling and Hannah Ludlam :

71, i, A child*, unnamed, 4. 27 Mar. 1696/97.
72, i, Brruiaut, bp. 1 Jan, 1700/1, m. 27 May 1721, as his 2nd wife,
Josppr Hicks. She d. 11 Feb, 1777,
--73, il HEexey4, bp, 22 Peb. 1701/2.
74, iv. Mary*, bp. 2 Jan, 170374, ¢¢ died 15 Nov, 1706 age abt 2 yrs.”’
T80 ve NaTHANY, hp. 27 Jan, 1705/6.
476, v, Awnawias*, bp. 15 Aug, 1708,
77. vil. Samurrt, bp. 27 Jan., 171011, ‘A son of Ananias Conkling
Senr. died 27 Apr. 1712 about a year and a quarter old,”’
Ch, rec.
78, vill, Lesmurn, bp, § Apr. 1718,
T8 iy, BEwJAMINY b, 25 Oct. 1715, a twin, bp. 11 Dee. 1715, .
$0, = Hawxans, b. 25 Oet. 1715, a twin, bp. 11 Dee. 1715, m. 7 Mar.
1786/37, as his seeond wife, Capt, Isaac Barxgs, Jr. She d.
27 Aug, 1748, Called dau. of Ananias Conkling in mar. ree.
--81. xi, Daxiest, bp. 16 Feb, 1717718,
=82, xil,  Josiamd, bp 28 July 1721
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16, BenJamm® CoNELING (Benjamin®, Ananias'), who was
born at East Hampton, L. 1., ca, 1678, entered his earmark in
that town as Benjamin Conkling, Jr., T Jan. 1700. IIe owned a
10-pound right in Montauk in 1706/7. On 18 Oct. 1709, John
Conkling, eldest son of Benjamin Conkling, deceased, confirmed
to his brother Benjamin Conkling a deed of gift made to the
latter by their father. e is in the records as witnessing three
wills by East Hampton men: that of Jacob Schellinx (Schel-
linger) on 28 Jan, 1712, that of John Edwards on 31 Aug. 1728,
and that of Robert Parsons on 20 Dee, 1742, Benjamin Conk-
ling served in Capt. Matthias Burnett’s company of East Hamp-
ton men in 1715, whieh indicates that he either lived at Amagan-
sett or mear that village. He was a Montauk proprietor in the
1727 list. He drew 30 acres at Aconbonuck and Ayleswife Brook
in a distribution of eommonage, 16 Apr. 1736.

Benjamin Conkling served as an Bast Hampton trustee in 1712,
14, '24 and 29, and as assessor in 1723. The record of the
Rev. Mr. Buell, who succeeded the Rev. Mr. Huntting at ISast
Hampton, states: ‘13 Sept. 1748 ye wife of Benjamin Conkling
aged abt 70" died. And later, ‘‘Benjamin Conkling died 20
Apr, 1752 aged about 70, He probably was about founr years
older, No indication of the surname or given name of Benjamin
Conkling’s wife has been found,

Children of Benjamin® Conkling and ———:

83, i, A daughter*, unnamed in the records. ‘A daughter of Benja-
min Conkling’s aged abt 8 years died in the night at hed time
2 Aug, 171107 Ch. ree.

--84, i, Bengamixt, b. ca, 1702,

85. i, Hawwamt, bp. as an adult, 26 Nov. 1727, owned the envenant
the same day. She m, 9 Oect. 1729, Jonaruaxy Hrepses. She
d. 12 Jan, 1792 ae, 82,

86. iv. IPrancest, bp. ag an adult, 26 Nov, 1727, owned the covenant
the same day. She was b, ca, 1713 and on 11 Apr. 1732, m.
Major Joux MurDpOCK.

87. v. MEHITABLEY, bp. as an adult, 4 Aug. 1734, owned the eovenant
the same day. She m. 20 Mar, 1740, EsENEZER HEDGES.
Perhapy other daughters.

18. Euaxm® Conrvivg (Benjomin®, Ananies'), born say
1683 at Bast Hampton, L. 1, entered his earmark there, 10 May
1703, Among undated land entries in the town reeord appears:
““The record of land laid out to Eliakim Conkling by virtue of
the allotment that descended to him by his father Benjamin
Conkling, deceased.”” On 29 Dee, 1711, he deeded two lots in
Southold (evidently from father’s estate) to Joseph Davison of
Brookhaven. Eliakim Conkling served in Capt. John Cooper's
company of Col. Henry Smith’s Suffolk County regiment in
1715. On 19 Mar. 1722/23, he witnessed the will of Ebenezer
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Leek of Bast Hampton. On 26 Apr. 1725, Eliakim Conkling,
veoman, sold Isaae Mulford for 48 pounds one-tenth part of a
share in Montauk. e received 44 acres on 16 Apr. 1736 in the
distribution of commonage for Aconbonick Neck and Ayleswife
Brook Neck. In a distribution of 6 Feb. 1739/40 he received
five acres. He was an East Hampton trustee in 1715 aud con-
gtable in 1711, ’33, ’34 and '35. He appears in the town books
in 1739 for the last time as a vesident of Fast Hampton.

The will of Aaron Fithian of Fast Hampton dated 12 Jan,
1749/50 mentions land whieh the testator purchased of Bliakim
Conkling as lying hetween the land of Burnett Miller and Ben-
jamin Conkling. On 8 July 1749, Joshua HWempstead, the
diarist, of New London, Conn., who was in New Jersey on a
trip wrote: ““1 got to my kinsman’s Nathaniel Salmon about ¢
and put up. He lives at a place called Springfield (N. J.) and
keeps tavern and one Eliakim Conkling keeps tavern close by on
the other side of the road.”

On 22 July 1708, Fliakim Conkling married DEporAH STRAT-
ToN, daughter of Richard® Stratton of East Hampton, and his
wife Sarah Sturges of Fairfield, Conn. Nothing more concerning
Eliakim Conkling has been found after Hempstead’s statement.

Children of Eliakim® Conkling and Deborah Stratton:

88. 1. A son'. ‘“A son of Eliakim Conkling aged about 4 or § years
died 21 June 1712,’’ East Hampton Ch, recs.
89, i, Drroram*, bp. as an adult 11 July 1736, and owned the cove-
nant, On the same day was bp., ‘“a child (Elizabeth 9) of
Deborah Conklings daughter of Eliak Conkling.’’.
90. i, Barapt, bp. as an adult and owned the covenant, 1 Aug, 1736.
-+-91.  iv, Buaxm, b. abt, 1713, Ch. ree.
[To be continued]

THE FOUNDERS OF THE BRAS(S), BRASSER,
BRESSER, BRIES AND BRAZIER FAMILIES
IN AMERICA

By Wiriaat J. Horruar, M. Mech, Eng., F.GB.S,
. [Continned from Vol. 20, p. 223]

BRIES
Loxe IsuAND, P1scaTaway

1. Hexorier Vorowewtsz, from Jever in Oldenburg. Born
in 1634, for in 1664 he made an affidavit to the raid of Capt.
Seott on the Dutch towns of Liong Island and was then ‘‘aged
30 years™ (Col. Mss,, Vol T1:482).

e mar. NYDR in 1655 (int. Feb. 26) Grerrse Crars from
New Amsterdam, daughter of Claes Cornelissen ‘“meutelaer”






